
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/26/2019 • Last updated: 08/26/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER SCHOOL FOR GIRLS 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name Brighter Choice Girls 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents-Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Albany 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 01/2001 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 08/2002 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 7 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Mission of the Brighter Choice Charter Schools is to ensure that BCCS scholars have the same 

opportunities for future success as scholars attending the best public schools in the region. There are 

three significant components to achieving this mission: 
· Exemplary instruction that ensures competency and mastery in reading, writing and mathematics. 
· Focus on the development of social, behavioral, and organizational skills necessary for future school 
success 

· An education beyond the basics that includes: Performing Arts, Visual Arts, Sciences, and History. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 

Variable 2 

Variable 3 

Variable 4 

An intense and serious focus on academic achievement 
The BCCSG daily schedule demonstrates its intense and
serious focus on academic achievement. The educational 
program is designed to inspire and motivate learning,
engage teachers and scholars in new levels of focus and
effort, and create a place where scholars take ownership of
their own learning. 

An equally rigorous standard for scholar behavior, with an
emphasis on core values BCCSG will adhere to high
expectations for scholar conduct and will teach and reinforce
strategies to increase scholar motivation, focus, cooperation,
and collaboration. A curriculum for character development
surrounding our core values will be used to grow and
develop our scholars’ social and behavioral skills. Scholars
will be engaged in tasks and activities that would allow them
to problem solve whether or not actions are appropriate or
inappropriate to different situations. 

Single-Gender classroom instruction
BCCSG enrolls girls only. 

An extended school day and extended school year
In keeping with the mission of BCCS, a longer school day and
school year will help scholars achieve mastery of concepts in
an academically rigorous curriculum. 

2 / 7 



	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Variable 5 

Variable 6 

Variable 7 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

Mandatory School Uniforms 

A high level of parental/guardian participation in the life of
the school 
Scholar achievement is strengthened by parent and
community involvement. BCCSG will connect parents and
caregivers with their scholar’s education by means of
frequent calls home, progress reports, and website. BCCSG
also offers multiple opportunities for parental involvement
including various family events and volunteer opportunities. 

Frequent standardized testing
BCCSG administers various formative, interim, and 
summative assessments which are used to increase 
instructional effectiveness, adjust individual scholar learning
goals, and provide meaningful feedback to teachers 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

http://www.brighterchoice.org/girls 

325 

321 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 
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l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 
Served at Site 
for coming year
(K-5, 6-9, etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

Site 1 Albany K-5 No 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Kristina Ford 

Luke Licygiewicz 

Kristina Ford 

Kristina Ford 

Caitlin Appleby 

Luke Licygiewicz 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone Alternate Phone 

Private Space 

Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110128554/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110128554/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

5 / 7 
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n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Jen Pasek 

Position Consultant 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/08/26 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/26/2019 

BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER SCHOOL FOR GIRLS 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re-select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS-Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

year=2018&instid=800000055503 

1 / 1 
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Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 08/01/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents-authorized and NYCDOE-authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal - Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

Although our
students did 
outperform the
district and the state 
overall, grades 3 and
5 fell short of the NYS 
averages.
Going forward, our 3-
5 ELA curricula 
remains the same. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

NYS ELA 3-8 Scores 
Compared to District
and NYS 

NYS ELA Exam 

Percent Proficient 
Gr|BCCSG|Alb.|NYS
3) 51% |31%|52%
4) 73% |25% |48%
5) 30% |16% |38%
All) 53%|24%|46% 

Met 

We are using Check
for understanding
strategies to identify
gaps in student
knowledge and
address 
misconceptions
during the lesson. We
have fully adopted
the 2nd grade EL
curriculum that is 

Overall, BCCSG 
continues to 
outperform the local
district and NYS. 

vertically aligned
with the 3rd grade
curriculum to better 
prepare students.
Check for 
Understanding during 

1 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	

	
	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	
	

	 	 	

	

	

	

	

Academ NYS Math 3-8 Scores 
ic Goal Compared to District
2 and NYS 

Academ 
ic Goal 
3 

Academ 
ic Goal 
4 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 

NYS Math Exam 

Percent Proficient 
Gr.|BCCSG|Albany|NY
S 
3) 35% | 31% | 55%
4) 36% | 24% | 50% Not Met 
5) 53% | 21% | 46%
All 40%| 25% | 50% 

BCCSG continues to 
outperform the local
district. 

the lesson is an 
instructional strategy
focus this year. This
will help teachers
respond to errors or
misconceptions
during the ELA
lesson. PD on this will 
be delivered by
members from 
Uncommon Grounds. 

We have added a 
Cognitively Guided
Math Instruction class 
that focuses on Math 
story problems.
Incorporating the
components of
Cognitively Guided
Instruction while 
teaching math story
problems will be a
focus. Math PD will 
focus on CGI. Using
questioning during
student work time 
that pushes students
to carry the cognitive
load is a main 
component of CGI.
Assessment data will 
be analyzed more
frequently and
collective action 
planning meetings
will take place more
frequently. 

2 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	

	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	
	

	

	

	

6 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

2. Do have more academic goals No 

to add? 

3. Do have more academic goals No 

to add? 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

The school has not 
adopted any
additional 

Org
Goal 1 

organizational goals,
but report on the
performance
framework 
organizational goals
at renewal. 

Org
Goal 2 

Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

Goal - Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

3 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational No 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

4 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	
	

	 	 	
	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

The school has not 
adopted any
additional financial 
goals, but report on
the performance
framework ones at 
renewal. 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 

Goal - Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER SCHOOL FOR GIRLSSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 4713066 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 321 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 14701 

1 / 2 

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/AuditGuide.html
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf


	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018-19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year-end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

326658 

146539 

473197 

1476 

2 / 2 
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CUSACK & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountants LLC 

7 AIRPORT PARK BOULEVARD 

LATHAM, NEW YORK 12110 
(518) 786-3550 

FAX (518) 786-1538 
E-MAIL ADDRESS: CPAS@CUSACKCPAS.COM 

WWW.CUSACKCPAS.COM 

MEMBERS OF: MEMBERS OF: 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools 
Albany, New York 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Brighter Choice Elementary Charter 
Schools, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related 
statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 



 

  

  
  

   
 

 
   

  
  

    

  
  

 
 

  
  

   
   

 
    

    

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools as of June 30, 2019, and the 
changes in their net assets, their cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools’ basic financial statements. 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
25, 2019, on our consideration of Brighter Choice ElementaryCharter Schools’ internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools’ internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA’S LLC 

Latham, New York 
October 25, 2019 



     
 

  

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 

ASSETS 

Girls Boys 
School School Eliminations Total 

Current Assets 
Cash $ 1,961,429 $ 1,416,176 $ - $ 3,377,605 
Contracts and Grants Receivable 434,811 218,189 - 653,000 
Due from Related School 55,312 - (55,312) -

Total Current Assets 2,451,552 1,634,365 (55,312) 4,030,605 

Property and Equipment, Net 5,385,707 5,474,941 - 10,860,648 

Other Assets 
Cash, Restricted 100,000 100,000 - 200,000 
Bond Trust Accounts, Restricted 1,308,405 1,429,520 - 2,737,925 

Total Other Assets 1,408,405 1,529,520 - 2,937,925 

Total Assets $ 9,245,664 $ 8,638,826 $ (55,312) $ 17,829,178 

LIABILITIES AND UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities 
Current Portion of Bonded Mortgage
   Payable $ 260,000 $ 260,000 $ - $ 520,000 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 398,134 347,130 - 745,264 
Accrued Payroll and Benefits 299,606 314,727 - 614,333 
Unearned Revenue 24,145 22,814 - 46,959 
Due to Related School - 55,312 (55,312) -

Total Current Liabilities 981,885 999,983 (55,312) 1,926,556 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Bonded Mortgage Payable 6,925,953 6,926,364 - 13,852,317 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,337,826 712,479 - 2,050,305 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 9,245,664 $ 8,638,826 $ (55,312) $ 17,829,178 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 3 



    
 

    

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Girls 
School 

Revenue, Grants and Support 

Public School District 
Resident Student Enrollment $ 4,658,599 

Grants and Contracts 
Federal - Child Nutrition Program 303,990 
Federal - Title 1, II, IV and IDEA 167,251 
State - Per Pupil Supplement 87,768 
Other 50,534 

Total Revenue, Grants
   and Support 5,268,142 

Expenses 

Program Services 
Regular Education 2,777,231 
Special Education 205,112 
Other Programs 1,056,198 

Total Program Services 4,038,541 
Management and General 712,950 

Total Expenses 4,751,491 

Surplus from School Operations 516,651 

Other Revenue 
Fundraising 5,252 
Interest Income 22,036 

Total Other Revenue 27,288 

Increase in Net Assets 543,939 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions,
   Beginning of Year 793,887 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions,
   End of Year $ 1,337,826 

Boys 
School 

$ 4,758,811 

316,343 
174,526 

87,768 
54,431 

5,391,879 

3,019,731 
194,678 
642,994 

3,857,403 
962,893 

4,820,296 

571,583 

14,818 
22,036 
36,854 

608,437 

104,042 

$ 712,479 

Total 

$ 9,417,410 

620,333 
341,777 
175,536 
104,965 

10,660,021 

5,796,962 
399,790 

1,699,192 
7,895,944 
1,675,843 
9,571,787 

1,088,234 

20,070 
44,072 
64,142 

1,152,376 

897,929 

$ 2,050,305 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 4 



    
 

    

    

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Girls 
School 

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities: 
Change in Net Assets $ 543,939 

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 229,353 
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs 12,456 
Amortization of Bonded Mortgaged Premium (7,384) 

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 
Increase in Assets 

Grants and Contracts Receivable (185,755) 
Increase in Liabilities 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 159,149 
Accrued Payroll and Benefits 25,048 
Unearned Revenue 20,797 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 797,603 

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 
Due from Related Schools (55,312) 
Purchase of Property and Equipment (41,480) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
   Investing Activities (96,792) 

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 
Payments on Bonded Mortgage Payable (250,000) 
Net Deposits to Bonded Trust Accounts (116,372) 
Due to Related Schools (38,696) 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (405,068) 

Increase in Cash 295,743 

Cash, Beginning of Year 1,765,686 

Cash, End of Year $ 2,061,429 

Supplementary Cash Flow Information 
Cash Paid During the Year for Interest $ 379,000 

Boys 
School Total 

$ 608,437 $ 1,152,376 

239,720 
12,456 
(6,972) 

469,073 
24,912 

(14,356) 

(107,684) (293,439) 

168,922 
13,300 
20,989 

328,071 
38,348 
41,786 

949,168 1,746,771 

39,235 
(37,225) 

(16,077) 
(78,705) 

2,010 (94,782) 

(250,000) 
(116,373) 

55,312 
(311,061) 

(500,000) 
(232,745) 

16,616 
(716,129) 

640,117 935,860 

876,059 2,641,745 

$ 1,516,176 $ 3,577,605 

$ 379,000 $ 758,000 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 5 



     
  

        

 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES - GIRLS SCHOOL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018) 

Program Services 
Supporting 

Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education 

Other 
Programs 

Management 
and General 

Total 
2019 

Total 
2018 

Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

$ 147,300 
1,182,403 

-
1,329,703 

$ -
110,582 

-
110,582 

$ -
-

402,138 
402,138 

$ 365,584 
-
-

365,584 

$ 512,884 
1,292,985 

402,138 
2,208,007 

$ 522,861 
1,246,945 

573,195 
2,343,001 

Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Legal Services 
Accounting and Audit Services 
Other Purchased, Professional
   and Consulting Services 
Facility Interest Expense 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies and Materials 
Staff Development 
Marketing and Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expenses 
Depreciation 
Other 

331,966 
46,986 
-

47,256 

48,395 
229,415 
111,119 

23,078 
44,845 
11,622 
10,138 
-

43,498 
-

309,675 
46,950 

138,121 
4,464 

27,607 
3,901 
-
3,930 

4,025 
19,047 

9,226 
1,916 
3,723 

965 
842 

-
3,611 
-
-
3,898 

11,468 
371 

100,395 
14,200 
-

14,292 

14,636 
69,333 
33,582 

6,975 
13,553 

3,512 
3,064 
-

13,146 
310,092 

-
14,189 
41,742 

1,349 

91,270 
12,934 

2,811 
12,992 

13,305 
63,153 
30,588 

6,353 
12,345 

3,199 
2,791 

31,477 
11,974 
-
-

12,924 
38,022 

1,228 

551,238 
78,021 

2,811 
78,470 

80,361 
380,948 
184,515 

38,322 
74,466 
19,298 
16,835 
31,477 
72,229 

310,092 
309,675 

77,961 
229,353 

7,412 

621,631 
80,621 

934 
72,844 

66,712 
391,882 
190,352 

37,847 
75,275 
43,363 

8,664 
28,940 
47,835 

153,152 
257,605 

69,481 
227,476 

8,064 

Total Expenses $ 2,777,231 $ 205,112 $ 1,056,198 $ 712,950 $ 4,751,491 $ 4,725,679 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 6 



    
  

        

 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES - BOYS SCHOOL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018) 

Program Services 
Supporting 

Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education 

Other 
Programs 

Management 
and General 

Total 
2019 

Total 
2018 

Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

$ 128,241 
1,390,086 

-
1,518,327 

$ -
109,197 

-
109,197 

$ -
-

180,065 
180,065 

$ 518,482 
-
-

518,482 

$ 646,723 
1,499,283 

180,065 
2,326,071 

$ 553,548 
1,492,713 

284,263 
2,330,524 

Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Legal Services 
Accounting and Audit Services 
Other Purchased, Professional
   and Consulting Services 
Facility Interest Expense 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies and Materials 
Staff Development 
Marketing and Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expenses 
Depreciation 
Other 

286,924 
52,630 
-

57,358 

65,016 
248,929 
146,318 

25,096 
52,646 
20,754 
17,197 
-

17,542 
-

312,850 
36,187 

156,476 
5,481 

20,635 
3,785 
-
4,125 

4,676 
17,903 
10,523 

1,805 
3,786 
1,493 
1,237 
-
1,262 
-
-
2,603 

11,254 
394 

34,028 
6,242 
-
6,802 

7,711 
29,522 
17,353 

2,976 
6,244 
2,461 
2,039 
-
2,080 

321,972 
-
4,292 

18,557 
650 

97,979 
17,972 

2,812 
19,587 

22,202 
85,005 
49,965 

8,570 
17,978 

7,087 
5,873 

35,730 
5,990 
-
-

12,356 
53,433 

1,872 

439,566 
80,629 

2,812 
87,872 

99,605 
381,359 
224,159 

38,447 
80,654 
31,795 
26,346 
35,730 
26,874 

321,972 
312,850 

55,438 
239,720 

8,397 

432,801 
77,127 

1,844 
83,527 

100,285 
391,880 
195,891 

39,139 
77,958 
10,118 
15,144 
27,136 
14,985 

132,698 
262,350 

71,027 
239,597 

7,564 

Total Expenses $ 3,019,731 $ 194,678 $ 642,994 $ 962,893 $ 4,820,296 $ 4,511,595 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report. 7 



    

  

  

  
  

 
   

 
  

 

   
   

   

 

  
 

  

     

 

   

  
 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

1. ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE 

Organization 

Brighter Choice Charter School for Girls (the “Girls School”) and Boys (the “Boys School”) 
are not-for-profit corporations, which were formed in 2001 in order to build and operate 
charter schools in the City of Albany, New York. The Brighter Choice Charter Schools for 
Girls and Boys (the “Schools”) were established to provide a quality educational alternative 
for at-risk elementary students in the City. Effective July 1, 2016, Brighter Choice Charter 
School for Boys was merged with and into Brighter Choice Charter School for Girls, with 
Brighter Choice Charter School for Girls being renamed Brighter Choice Elementary Charter 
Schools. 

Each charter school, authorized by Article 56 of the New York State Charter Schools Act of 
1998, is an independent public school and, in accordance with their charter and by laws, each 
school has a Board of Trustees and is an independent, discreet operating entity. 

The Schools provides a broad and rigorous liberal arts education, including instruction on 
phonics-based reading, traditional mathematics, science, visual and performing arts, American 
and world history, and physical education. Students benefit from a longer school day and 
school year, which will provide them with an equivalent of two years of academic instruction 
over each of their elementary years. 

The New York State Education Department has issued the Schools a three year charter valid 
until June 30, 2021. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Girls School had enrollment of 
approximately 320 students (329 students, June 30, 2018) and the Boys School had enrollment 
of approximately 320 students (315 students, June 30, 2018) serving kindergarten through 5th 

grade. 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statement presentation follows accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for not-for-profit organizations. 

The financial statements report net assets and changes in net assets in two classes that are 
based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as 
follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 

Unrestricted net assets are resources available to support operations. The only limits on 
the use of unrestricted net assets are the broad limits resulting from the nature of the 
School. 

See independent auditor’s report. 8 



    

  

      

  

     
   

    
   

   
   

   

  
   
  

       
 

  
  

  
  

  
 

BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Purpose restricted net assets are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a 
particular purpose or in a particular future period. 

When a donor’s restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner 
specified by the donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is 
reported in the financial statements by reclassifying the net assets from net assets with 
donor restrictions to unrestricted net assets. The Schools have no purpose restricted net 
assets at June 30, 2019. 

Perpetually restricted net assets are resources whose use by the School is limited by donor 
imposed restrictions that neither expire by being used in accordance with a donor’s 
restriction nor by the passage of time. The Schools have no perpetually restricted net 
assets at June 30, 2019. 

Contracts and Grants Receivable 

Contacts and grants receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made 
for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. 
Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts 
and by using historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. Contracts and grants 
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts previously 
written off are recorded when received. A receivable is considered past due if any portion of 
the receivable balance is outstanding for more than 90 days. Interest is not charged on 
outstanding accounts receivable.  The allowance for doubtful accounts was $158,630 for the 
Girls School and $61,534 for the Boys School at June 30, 2019. 

Contributions 

Contributions received are recorded as with or without donor restrictions depending on the 
existence and/or nature of any donor imposed restrictions. 

The Schools report grants of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received 
with stipulations that limit their use. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, purpose restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. The Schools report restricted grants as unrestricted support 
whenever the restrictions are met in the same year the grants are received. 

See independent auditor’s report. 9 



    

  

      

 

   

 
  

  
  

   
   

 
  

 

   

 

 
  

 
 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Fair Value 

The Accounting Standards Codification requires expanded disclosures about fair value 
measurements and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based on 
the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair 
value is defined as the price that the School would receive upon selling an asset or pay to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. It prioritizes the 
inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 
measurements), and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable 
inputs (Level 3 measurements). 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash, contracts and grants receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses and unearned 
revenue - The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

Property and equipment - No attempt has been made to determine the fair value of property 
and equipment. 

Mortgage payable - The fair value of the mortgage payable is estimated based on current rates 
offered to the School for debt of the same remaining maturity. At June 30, 2019, the fair value 
of the mortgage payable approximates the amount recorded in the financial statements. 

Income Taxes 

The Schools are exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, and the School is exempt from state income tax. The Schools have been 
classified as a publicly-supported organization that is not a private foundation under Section 
509(a) of the Code. 

See independent auditor’s report. 10 



    

  

      

 
    

  
   

   
 

  
 

 
   

 

 
 

  

   

  

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The Accounting Standards Codification requires entities to disclose in their financial 
statements the nature of any uncertainty in their tax position. The Schools have not recognized 
any benefits or liabilities from uncertain tax positions in 2019 and believes it has no uncertain 
tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that will significantly increase or decrease net 
assets. Generally, federal and state authorities may examine the Schools’ tax returns for three 
years from the date of filing; consequently, income returns for years prior to 2016 are no 
longer subject to examination by tax authorities. 

Grant Revenue and Unearned Revenue 

Grant revenue is recognized as revenue in the period in which it is spent. Amounts received 
under these grants that have not yet been spent are recorded as unearned revenue. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Donations of 
property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair values on the date of 
donation. Expenditures for acquisitions, renewals, and betterments are capitalized, whereas 
maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. When equipment is retired or 
otherwise disposed of, the appropriate accounts are relieved of costs and accumulated 
depreciation, and any resultant gain or loss is credited or charged to the change in net assets. 

Long-lived assets to be held and used are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Years 

Building and Improvements 40 
Furniture and Equipment 3-10 

Revenue Recognition 

A substantial portion of the Schools’ revenue and related receivables are derived from its 
arrangement with the local School Districts, which reimburse the Schools based on per capita 
enrollment. These revenues are recognized ratably over the related school year during which 
they are earned. 

Revenue from other governmental sources generally represents various entitlements and is 
recognized as earned when allowable expenditures are incurred. 

See independent auditor’s report. 11 



    

  

      

   
 

  

 

  
   

     
 

    

  
  

  
   

 
 

    
   

 
  

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED) 

Allocation of Expenses 

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to program and supporting services. Expenses 
related to more than one function are charged to program and supporting services using 
specific allocation methods. Management and general expenses include those expenses that 
are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support 
and direction of the School. 

3. CASH, RESTRICTED 

As part of the charter agreement, charter schools agree to establish an escrow account of no 
less than a set dollar amount as determined by the New York State Education Department 
(“NYSED”). This amount is established to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be 
associated with a dissolution should it occur. Each school has established an escrow account 
for $100,000 as required by the NYSED. 

4. BOND TRUST ACCOUNTS - RESTRICTED 

The Schools have entered into a custody agreement with Wilmington Trust Company as 
Custodian and as Trustee. Debt service reserve represents funds held by Wilmington Trust 
Company in the name of the Schools. The Schools will direct educational aid payments to be 
deposited with the Custodian. The Custodian will pay the Trustee, for deposit in the Debt 
Service Fund, an amount equal to a proportionate share of the next interest payment and 
principal payment on the Bonds for which funds have not already been provided. 
Additionally, the custodian will pay the Trustee, for deposit in the Repair and Replacement 
Fund, amounts necessary to equal the Repair and Replacement Fund requirement. Any funds 
remaining with the Custodian following such transfers will be transferred to the Schools. 

In connection with the bonded mortgage with the IDA, the Schools are required to maintain 
bond trust accounts which are administered by Wilmington Trust Company. The underlying 
investments in the bond trust accounts at June 30, 2019 consist of money market funds. 

Bond trust accounts consist of the following: 

Girls Boys 
School School Total 

Debt Reserve Fund $ 622,685 $ 622,685 $ 1,245,370 
Bond Fund 107,234 107,234 214,468 
Educational Aid Fund 122,212 111,431 233,643 
Repair and Replacement Fund 456,274 588,170 1,044,444 

$ 1,308,405 $ 1,429,520 $ 2,737,925 

See independent auditor’s report. 12 



    

  

     

 
  

  

 

  

   
     

  
 

 
 

 
  

  

 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

4. BOND TRUST ACCOUNTS - RESTRICTED (CONTINUED) 

The Schools have entered into a collateral agreement for bond trust accounts not covered under 
federal deposit insurance. Cash is fully insured and collateralized under the bond trust 
accounts as of June 30, 2019. 

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consists of the following: 

Girls Boys 
School School Total 

Land $ 110,000 $ 110,000 $ 220,000 
Building and Improvements 7,807,435 7,908,574 15,716,009 
Furniture and Equipment 651,712 722,167 1,373,879 
Total at Cost 8,569,147 8,740,741 17,309,888 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (3,183,440) (3,265,800) (6,449,240) 
Property and Equipment, Net $ 5,385,707 $ 5,474,941 $ 10,860,648 

Depreciation expense was $229,353 and $239,720 for the Girls School and for the Boys 
School, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

6. BONDED MORTGAGE PAYABLE 

The Schools’ facilities are jointly owned by the two Schools. The facilities were acquired 
through financing provided by the City of Albany Industrial Development Agency (IDA) in 
March 2008. The IDA issued taxable and tax-exempt Civic Facility Revenue Bonds totaling 
$18,490,000 to acquire and renovate the facilities of the two Schools. The Schools acquired 
the facilities from the IDA through an installment sale agreement which provides for the 
Schools to make installment purchase payments in amounts sufficient to pay the principal and 
interest on the bonds when due. Under the installment sale agreement, each School is jointly 
and severally obligated to make the installment purchase payments. The installment sale 
agreement is collateralized by a first mortgage lien and security interest in the land, buildings 
and equipment of the Schools’ facilities. 

Each of the Schools initially recorded 50% of the total cost of the facilities’ acquisition and 
renovation as well as 50% of the installment purchase agreement liability. 

See independent auditor’s report. 13 



    

  

   

 

  

 

 
    

    
 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

6. BONDED MORTGAGE PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

Maturities, remaining principal amounts, and interest rates of the bonds (and underlying 
installment purchase agreement), as allocated to each School, are as follows: 

Girls 
Total 

Boys 
Total Total 

5.00% Term Bond, Series 2007A due April 1, 2020 $ 260,000 $ 260,000 $ 520,000 
5.00% Term Bond, Series 2007A due April 1, 2027 2,230,000 2,230,000 4,460,000 
5.00% Term Bond, Series 2007A due April 1, 2032 2,127,500 2,127,500 4,255,000 
5.00% Term Bond, Series 2007B due April 1, 2037 2,712,500 2,712,500 5,425,000 

Total Bonded Mortgage Payable 7,330,000 7,330,000 14,660,000 
Current Portion of Bonded Mortgage Payable (260,000) (260,000) (520,000) 
Bonded Mortgage Premium - Net 77,069 77,480 154,549 
Deferred Financing Costs - Net (221,116) (221,116) (442,232) 

Bonded Mortgage Payable - Long Term $ 6,925,953 $ 6,926,364 $13,852,317 

The following is a summary of maturing debt service requirements for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 

Girls Boys 
School School Total 

2020 $ 260,000 $ 260,000 $ 520,000 
2021 272,500 272,500 545,000 
2022 287,500 287,500 575,000 
2023 302,500 302,500 605,000 
2024 317,500 317,500 635,000 
Thereafter 5,890,000 5,890,000 11,780,000 

$ 7,330,000 $ 7,330,000 $ 14,660,000 

Total interest was $380,948 and $381,359 for the Girls School and the Boys School for the 
year ended June 30, 2019, respectively. 

Net deferred financing costs consist of bond closing costs incurred in connection with tax-
exempt and taxable Civic Facility Revenue Bonds issued by the IDA. Bond closing costs are 
being amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the obligation. Net deferred 
financing costs consist of the following: 

Girls Boys 
School School Total 

Bond Closing Costs $ 373,702 $ 373,702 $ 747,404 
Accumulated Amortization (152,586) (152,586) (305,172) 

Net Deferred Financing Costs $ 221,116 $ 221,116 $ 442,232 

Amortization Expense $ 12,456 $ 12,456 $ 24,912 

See independent auditor’s report. 14 



    

  

   

 

 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

6. BONDED MORTGAGE PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

Bond premiums received in connection with tax-exempt and taxable Civic Facility Revenue 
Bonds issued by the IDA are amortized using the effective interest method over the term of 
the obligation. 

Premium amortization charged to operations as a reduction of interest expense was $14,356 
for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

The Schools are subject to debt covenants which are calculated using information aggregated 
from both Schools. The covenants are as follows: 

Minimum 
Requirement Actual 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.10 

Days Cash on Hand 20 

The debt service coverage ratio is calculated as follows: 

Increase in Net Assets $ 1,152,376 
Add Back: Interest Expense 762,307 

Depreciation 469,073 
Net Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 2,383,756 

Debt Service Payments 
Interest Expense $ 762,307 
Principal 500,000 

Total Current Debt Service $ 1,262,307 

Net Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 2,383,756 = 1.89 
Total Current Debt Service $ 1,262,307 

See independent auditor’s report. 15 



    

  

   

 

  

  
 

  
 

  

 
   

   
   
  

 
  
    

 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

6. BONDED MORTGAGE PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 

The days cash on hand is calculated as follows: 

Total Expenses $ 9,571,787 
Less: Depreciation 469,073 

Net Amortization 10,555 
Net Expenses 9,092,159 
Days 365 
Cash Used Per Day $ 24,910 

Cash at Year End $ 3,377,605 = 135.6 
Cash Used Per Day $ 24,910 

7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Schools have 403(b) tax-deferred annuity retirement plans, which are funded by 
contributions from both the Schools and its employees. The Schools’ contribution ranges from 
2% to 6% of eligible employees’ salaries based on years of service. Retirement plan expense 
was $78,021 and $80,629 for the Girls School and the Boys School for the year ended June 
30, 2019, respectively. 

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Schools maintain cash balances in a financial institution located in the northeast. 
Accounts at this institution are insured, up to certain limits, by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). At June 30, 2019, the Schools have bank deposits of approximately $2.9 
million in excess of amounts insured by the FDIC. 

In the normal course of business, the Schools are, from time to time, subject to allegations that 
may or do result in litigation. The Schools have general liability insurance to cover potential 
claims. Based upon the advice of counsel, it is the opinion of management that any liability 
that may arise from such actions would not result in losses that would materially affect the 
financial position of the Schools or their change in net assets. 

The Schools are subject to audits and reviews of reimbursable costs by various governmental 
agencies. The outcome of the audits and reviews may have the effect of retroactively 
increasing or decreasing revenue from various sources. These changes, if any, will be 
recognized in accordance with the rules and guidelines established by the various funding 
sources. 

See independent auditor’s report. 16 



    

  

  

 
   

  

  

 

   

 

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2019 

9. CONCENTRATION OF RISK 

The Schools receive a substantial portion of their funding from school districts where the 
School’s students reside as well as federal funding sources. One payor constituted 66% of 
total revenue and support for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

10. LIQUIDITY 

The School’s liquidity management policy is to structure its financial assets to be available as 
its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due.  

The School has financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position 
due to meet cash needs for general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations of: 

Cash $ 3,377,605 
Contracts and Grants Receivable 653,000 
Financial Assets Available to Meet
 Cash Needs within One Year $ 4,030,605 

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make 
them unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position 
date. 

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Schools have evaluated subsequent events or transactions as to any potential material 
impact on operations or financial position that existed at the date of the financial statements 
through October 25, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No 
such events or transactions were identified. 

See independent auditor’s report. 17 
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CUSACK & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountants LLC 

7 AIRPORT PARK BOULEVARD 

LATHAM, NEW YORK 12110 
(518) 786-3550 

FAX (518) 786-1538 
E-MAIL ADDRESS: CPAS@CUSACKCPAS.COM 

WWW.CUSACKCPAS.COM 

MEMBERS OF: MEMBERS OF: 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools 
Albany, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Brighter Choice Elementary 
Charter Schools (nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June  30, 
2019, and the related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Brighter Choice Elementary 
Charter Schools’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schools’ internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness  is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 

18 



            
           

      
         

         
             

 

                  
            

            
       

    

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools’ 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA’S LLC 

Latham, New York 
October 25, 2019 

19 



  

   

   

 

  

  

  

      

    

       

      

     

          
     

           
          

         

            
            

          
           

             
        

            
          

             
          

         

   
           

CUSACK & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountants LLC 

7 AIRPORT PARK BOULEVARD 

LATHAM, NEW YORK 12110 
(518) 786-3550 

FAX (518) 786-1538 
E-MAIL ADDRESS: CPAS@CUSACKCPAS.COM 

WWW.CUSACKCPAS.COM 

MEMBERS OF: MEMBERS OF: 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 

FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools 
Albany, New York 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools’ compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Brighter Choice Elementary Charter 
Schools’ major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance requires 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Brighter Choice 
Elementary Charter School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major  federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Brighter Choice Elementary 
Charter Schools’ compliance. 

20 



        
            

            

            
            
         
              

             
            

           
           

         

           
            

          
            
          

            
         

       
             

           
           

             
           

                 
             

 

    

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Brighter Choice Elementary Charter 
Schools’ internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Brighter Choice Elementary Charter 
Schools’ internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA’S LLC 
Latham, New York 
October 25, 2019 
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BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

Pass-Through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

Girls 
School 

Boys 
School 

Total 
Federal 

Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Passed Through NYS Education Department: 
Cash Assistance 

School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

10.553 
10.555 

-
-

$ 65,299 
206,781 

$ 68,400 
216,598 

$ 133,699 
423,379 

Cash Assistance Subtotal 272,080 284,998 557,078 

Passed Through NYS Health Department 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 - 31,910 31,345 63,255 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 303,990 316,343 620,333 

U.S. Department of Education 

Passed-Through City of Albany School District: 

Special Education Cluster (IDEA): 
IDEA Part B, Section 611 84.027A 3,682 5,523 9,205 

Passed-Through NYS Education Department: 

ESEA Title I, Basic Grant 84.010A 0021-19-4015-Girls 
0021-19-4010-Boys 

132,225 137,758 269,983 

Title II A, Improving Teacher Quality 84.367A 0147-19-4015-Girls 
0147-19-4010-Boys 

21,344 21,045 42,389 

Title IV Student Support and Enrichment 84.424A 0204-19-4015-Girls 
0204-19-4010-Boys 

10,000 10,200 20,200 

Total U.S. Department of Education 167,251 174,526 341,777 

Total Federal Awards Expended $ 471,241 $ 490,869 962,110 

See independent auditor’s report. 22 



    
   

     

     

  
 
  

  
 

        

   

   

  

  

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

1. SUMMARY OF CERTAIN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of federal award 
programs administered by the School, which is described in Note 1 to the School’s general purpose 
financial statements, using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Federal awards that are included 
in the schedule may be received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards that are 
passed through from other government agencies. The information is presented in accordance with 
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 

1. SCOPE OF THE AUDIT PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Brighter Choice Elementary Charter Schools is a tax-exempt nonprofit entity. All federal grant 
operations of the Schools are included in the scope of the Single Audit. 

3. SUBRECIPIENTS/LOAN OR LOAN GUARANTEES 

No amounts were provided to subrecipients and there were no loans or loan guarantees at year end. 

4. FEDERAL REVENUE RECONCILIATION 

Total Federal Revenue Per Basic Financial Statements 

Child Nutrition Programs $ 620,333 
Title I, II, IV and IDEA 341,777 

Total Federal Revenue Per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 962,110 

5. INDIRECT COST RATE 

The School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 

See independent auditor’s report. 23 



    

 

     

      

 

 

 

 

   
 
 

   

   

 

 

 

      

          

  

BRIGHTER CHOICE ELEMENTARY CHARTER SCHOOLS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditor’s report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
“Going Concern” explanatory paragraph in the

 audit report? 
Significant deficiency(ies) disclosed? 
Significant deficiency(ies) reported as a material

 weakness(es)? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) reported for any known

 questioned costs reported? 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
 major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
 reported in accordance with section 2 CFR Section
 210.515(d)(2)? 

Identification of major program. 

CFDA NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM OR CLUSTER 

10.553/10.555 Child Nutrition Program 

Unmodified

 yes
 yes

 yes

 yes

 yes

 yes 

Unmodified

 yes

 x  no
 x none reported 

x  no 

x  no

 x  no

 x  no

 x  no 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x yes  no 

SSeeee iinnddeeppeennddeenntt aauuddiittoorr’’ss rreeppoorrtt.. 2244 
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Charter School  ame 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

2019 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,377,605 
Grants and contracts receivable 653,000 
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses -
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS  4,030,605 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 10,860,648 
 estricted Cash 2,937,925 
Security Deposits -
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 
ASSETS 

13,798,573 

TOTAL ASSETS 17,829,178 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 745,264 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 614,333 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 520,000 
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue 46,959 
Other Current Liabilities -

TOTAL CURRE T 1,926,556
LIABILITIES 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ 13,852,317 
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 13,852,317 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  15,778,873 



               
                               

                               
 

           

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL  ET ASSETS

$ 2,050,305 
-

-
2,050,305 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 17,829,178 



 
   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

               
                    
                               
                               
                           

                               

             
                 
                               

                               

        

                  
                    
                    
                               
                               
                        

                               

             
                               
                               

                               

Charter School  ame 
Statement of Financial Pos 

as of June 30 

2018 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,491,745 
Grants and contracts receivable 359,561 
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses -
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS 2,851,845 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 11,251,016 
 estricted Cash 2,655,180 
Security Deposits -
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 13,906,196 
ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 16,758,041 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 417,192 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 575,985 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 500,000 
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue 5,173 
Other Current Liabilities -

TOTAL CURRE T 
LIABILITIES 

1,498,350 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ 14,361,762 
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

14,361,762 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,860,112 
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 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL  ET ASSETS 

$ 897,929 
-

-
897,929 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 16,758,041 



 
  

   

  

   
               

                               
                               

                    
                    
                    

                    

     

  
 

               
                    

                 

  
                 

                               

    

       

    
                    
                               

                      
                               

                               
                               

      

                            

    

                       

  
 

         

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

TOTAL OPERATI G REVE UE  10,660,021 -

EXPE SES
 Program Services
  egular Education $ 5,796,962  $ 

Charter School  ame 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

2019 
Unrestricted Temporarily

Restricted 

OPERATI G REVE UE
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue -  eg. Ed $ 9,417,410  $ 
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue - SPED -
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities  evenue -
 Federal Grants 341,777
 State and City Grants 175,536
 Other Operating Income 104,965
 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 620,333

 Special Education 399,790
 Other Programs 1,699,192

 Management and general 1,675,843
 Fundraising -

 Interest and Other Income $ 44,072  $ 
 Contributions and Grants -
 Fundraising Support 20,070
 Investments -
 Donated Services -
 Other Support and  evenue -

 et Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on $ -
Di l f As 

 ET ASSETS - BEGI  I G OF YEAR $ 897,929  $ 

-
-
-

 Total Program Services  7,895,944 -
-
-

TOTAL EXPE SES  9,571,787 -

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIO S  1,088,234 -

SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE
-

-
-
-
-
-

TOTAL SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE  64,142 -

$ -

CHA GE I   ET ASSETS  1,152,376 -

-



                                  

       

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTME TS --

 ET ASSETS - E D OF YEAR  $ 2,050,305 $ -



    

             
                              
                              

                  
                    
                    

                  

             
                  

               

               
                              

                  
                              

                    
                              
                              
                              

                            

             

Total 

$ 9,417,410 
-
-

341,777 
175,536 
104,965 
620,333 

10,660,021 

$ 5,796,962 
399,790 

1,699,192 

7,895,944 
1,675,843 

-

9,571,787 

1,088,234 

$ 44,072 
-

20,070 
-
-
-

64,142 53,072 

$ - $ -

1,152,376 1,139,654 

$ 897,929 $ (241,725) 

2018 
Total

$ 9,377,862
-
-

322,975
30,675
36,550

555,794
 10,323,856 

$ 5,587,675
255,849

1,832,727
 7,676,251 

1,561,023

-
9,237,274 

1,086,582 

$ 22,353
-

30,719
-
-

-



                               - -

$ 2,050,305 $ 897,929 



 
   

  

   
                           

                                             
                                            
                                            
                                
                              
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                
                                            
                                  
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                            
                                  

                                
   

   
                                

                                
   

   
                              

                                  
   

   

                             
    

Charter School  ame 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of Ju 

2019 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATI G ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 1,152,376 
 evenues from School Districts -
Accounts  eceivable -
Due from School Districts -
Depreciation 469,073 
Grants  eceivable (293,439) 
Due from NYS -
Grant revenues -
Prepaid Expenses -
Accounts Payable 328,071 
Accrued Expenses -
Accrued Liabilities 38,348 
Contributions and fund-raising activities -
Miscellaneous sources -
Deferred  evenue 41,786 
Interest payments -
Other 24,912 

Other (14,356) 
 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATI G ACTIVITIES  $ 1,746,771 

CASH FLOWS - I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Purchase of equipment (78,705) 
Other (16,077) 

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ (94,782) 

CASH FLOWS - FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt (732,745) 
Other 16,616 

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ (716,129) 

 ET (DECREASE) I CREASE I  CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS $ 935,860 
Cash at beginning of year 2,641,745 

CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS AT E D OF YEAR  $ 3,577,605 



 

                           
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                
                                
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                    
                                            
                                
                                            
                                            
                                    
                                            
                                  

                                

                              

                                

                              

                              

                             

une 30 

2018 

$ 1,139,654 
-
-
-

467,073 
607,697 

-
-

16,706 
6,004 

-
(64,901) 

-
-

1,396 
-

$ 

24,912 

(15,180)
2,183,361 

$ 

$ 

(177,917) 

493,832
315,915 

$ 

$ 

(681,773) 

(493,691)
(1,175,464)

 $ 

$ 

1,323,812 

1,317,933
2,641,745 



 
   
   

 
  

                                                                
                                                 
                                                                
    

                                       
                                             
                                                                          
                                                                          
                                           

                                           
 

                                         
                                         
                                               
                                             
                                               
                                                                          
                                               
                                                                          
                                             

                                                              
                                                             
                                             

     

Charter School  ame 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2019 
Program Services Sup 

No. of Regular Special Other Total Fundraising 
Positions Education Education Education 

Personnel Services Costs  $  $  $  $  $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel  - 275,541 - - 275,541 -
Instructional Personnel  - 2,572,489 219,779 - 2,792,268 -
Non-Instructional Personnel  - - - 582,203  582,203 -

Total Salaries and Staf  - 2,848,030 219,779 582,203 3,650,012 -
Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 618,890 48,242 134,423  801,555 -
 etirement 99,616 7,686 20,442  127,744 -
Management Company Fees - - - - -
Legal Service - - - - -
Accounting / Audit Services 104,614 8,055 21,094  133,763 -
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 113,411 8,701 22,347

 144,459 -

Building and Land  ent / Lease 478,344 36,950 98,855  614,149 -
 epairs & Maintenance 257,437 19,749 50,935  328,121 -
Insurance 48,174 3,721 9,951  61,846 -
Utilities 97,491 7,509 19,797  124,797 -
Supplies / Materials 32,376 2,458 5,973  40,807 -
Equipment / Furnishings - - - - -
Staf Development 27,335 2,079 5,103  34,517 -
Marketing  /  ecruitment - - - - -
Technology 61,040 4,873 15,226  81,139 -
Food Service - - 632,064  632,064 -
Student Services 622,525 - - 622,525 -
Ofce Expense 83,137 6,501 18,481  108,119 -



                                         

                                                    

  

Depreciation 294,597 22,722 60,299  377,618 -
OTHE  9,945 765 1,999  12,709 -

Total Expenses  $ 5,796,962 $ 399,790 $ 1,699,192 $ 7,895,944 $ -



 

                         
                                      
                                         

                         
                              
                                                      
                                    
                              

                              
                            
                              
                                
                              
                                
                                                      
                                  
                                
                                
                                         
                                         
                              

 
 

 

2018 
pporting Services 
Management
and General 

Total Total 

$  $  $  $ 
884,066  884,066 1,159,607 1,076,409 

- -2,792,268 2,739,658 
- - 582,203 857,458

 884,066 884,066 4,534,078 4,673,525 
189,249  189,249 990,804 1,054,432 
30,906  30,906 158,650 157,748 

- - - -
5,623  5,623 5,623 2,778 
32,579  32,579 166,342 156,371 

35,507 179,966 
35,507 166,997 
148,158  148,158 762,307 783,762 
80,553  80,553 408,674 386,243 
14,923  14,923 76,769 76,986 
30,323  30,323 155,120 153,233 
10,286  10,286 51,093 53,481 

- - - -
8,664  8,664 43,181 23,808 
67,207  67,207 67,207 56,076 
17,964  17,964 99,103 62,820 

- - 632,064 285,850 
- - 622,525 519,955 

25,280  25,280 133,399 140,508 



                              

                                  

91,455  91,455 469,073 467,073 

3,100  3,100 15,809 15,628
 $ 1,675,843 $ 1,675,843 $ 9,571,787 $ 9,237,274 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119071454/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119071454/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 

to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not Applicable 

the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not Applicable 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119071454/8mMIunnVv3/
https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119071454/FlNDqRIBTE/


	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119071454/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not Applicable 

the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119071454/pN6H0Nalce/




































































































	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER SCHOOL FOR GIRLSSection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Shawn Jahn 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Cusack & Company

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact 
Person 

Boosted Paul Augello

Mailing
Address 

Email Phone Years with 
Firm 

 

1 / 1 



    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



     
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

 

 

 

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

- - - -

- - -

- - -

- - -

Brighter Choice Charter School - Girls 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

4,996,184 -
4,097,063 350,949 

899,121 (350,949) 
314 -
314 -

OTHER 

275,122 
324,500 
(49,378) 

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

4,000 -
6,000 336,399 

(2,000) (336,399) 

TOTAL 

5,275,306 
5,114,911 

160,395 
-

314 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

Albany $15,862.00 

Schenectady $12,795.00 

Troy $16,883.00 

South Colonie $13,405.00 

Lansignburgh $10,738.00 

North Colonie $12,077.00 

Cohoes $13,302.00 

Renssaelaer $10,317.00 

Watervilet $10,810.00 

Shendedehowa $12,386.00 

Rotterdam/Mohanasen $9,584.00 

Guilderland $12,754.00 

Menands $17,723.00 

Green Island $13,694.00 

3,415,026 -
564,362 -
443,909 -

26,278 -
52,626 -
11,720 -
39,766 -
51,068 -
60,131 -
12,140 -

9,394 -
12,501 -
31,270 -
30,872 -

4,761,063 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

3,415,026 

564,362 

443,909 

26,278 

52,626 

11,720 

39,766 

51,068 

60,131 

12,140 

9,394 

12,501 

31,270 

30,872 

4,761,063 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

- -

- -
- -
- -

4,761,063 

- -
135,441 -

15,680 -
- -

- -
30,000 -

- -
181,121 

- -
26,000 -
20,000 -

- -
- -
- -

8,000 -
54,000 

-

-
-

5,122 

5,122 

-
-
-

270,000 

-
-
-

270,000 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

4,000 -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

4,000 

-

-
-

5,122 

4,766,185 

-
135,441 

15,680 

270,000 

-
30,000 

-
451,121 

4,000 

26,000 

20,000 

-
-
-

8,000 

58,000 
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Brighter Choice Charter School - Girls 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 4,996,184 - 275,122 4,000 -
Total Expenses 4,097,063 350,949 324,500 6,000 336,399 

Net Income 899,121 (350,949) (49,378) (2,000) (336,399) 
Actual Student Enrollment 314 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 314 -

TOTAL 

5,275,306 
5,114,911 

160,395 
-

314 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

TOTAL REVENUE 4,996,184 275,122 4,000 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management - - - - - -
Instructional Management 2.00 193,999 - - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00 198,633 - - - -
CFO / Director of Finance 0.50 - - - - 41,278 

Operation / Business Manager 0.50 - - - - 37,124 

Administrative Staff 1.00 - - - - 51,927 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 7 392,632 130,329 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 16.00 812,761 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 3.00 - 158,856 - - -
Substitute Teachers 1.00 38,297 - - - -
Teaching Assistants 3.00 91,826 - - - -
Specialty Teachers 8.00 415,323 - - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 2.00 111,374 - - - -
Other - 134,500 - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 33 1,604,081 158,856 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse 1.00 26,909 - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 1 26,909 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 41 2,023,622 158,856 130,329 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 182,648 14,338 - - 11,763 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 357,118 28,034 - - 23,000 

Retirement / Pension 75,711 5,943 - - 4,876 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 615,477 48,315 39,639 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2,639,099 207,171 169,968 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 85,000 

Legal - - - - 10,000 

Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -

5,275,306 

-
193,999 

198,633 

41,278 

37,124 

51,927 

522,961 

812,761 

158,856 

38,297 

91,826 

415,323 

-
111,374 

134,500 

1,762,937 

26,909 

-
-
-
-

26,909 

2,312,807 

208,749 

408,152 

86,531 

703,432 

3,016,239 

85,000 

10,000 

-
-
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Brighter Choice Charter School - Girls 

Food Service / School Lunch - - 324,500 - - 324,500 

Payroll Services 8,455 570 - - 475 9,500 

Special Ed Services - 30,000 - - - 30,000 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 13,950 1,050 - - - 15,000 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 64,815 5,215 - - 4,470 74,500 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 87,220 36,835 324,500 99,945 548,500 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses - - - - - -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 20,088 1,512 - - - 21,600 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 14,880 1,120 - - - 16,000 

Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 1,740 140 - - 120 2,000 

Telephone 30,624 2,464 - - 2,112 35,200 

Technology 22,620 1,820 - - 1,560 26,000 

Student Testing & Assessment 9,300 700 - - - 10,000 

Field Trips 16,740 1,260 - - - 18,000 

Transportation (student) 208,134 15,666 - - - 223,800 

Student Services - other 67,425 5,075 - - - 72,500 

Office Expense 49,590 3,990 - - 3,420 57,000 

Staff Development 8,700 700 - - 600 10,000 

Staff Recruitment 5,220 420 - - 360 6,000 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 51,150 3,850 - - - 55,000 

School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) - - - - - -
Fundraising - - - 6,000 - 6,000 

Other 5,133 413 - - 354 5,900 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 511,344 39,130 6,000 8,526 565,000 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 52,324 4,210 - - 3,609 60,142 

Janitorial 102,350 6,900 - - 5,750 115,000 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 313,899 25,256 - - 21,648 360,804 

Repairs & Maintenance 102,399 8,239 - - 7,062 117,700 

Equipment / Furniture 2,610 210 - - 180 3,000 

Security 5,220 420 - - 360 6,000 

Utilities 71,688 5,768 - - 4,944 82,400 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 650,490 51,003 43,553 745,046 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 208,910 16,809 - - 14,408 240,126 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,097,063 350,949 324,500 6,000 336,399 5,114,911 

NET INCOME 899,121 (350,949) (49,378) (2,000) (336,399) 160,395 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 4,996,184 - 275,122 4,000 - 5,275,306 
Total Expenses 4,097,063 350,949 324,500 6,000 336,399 5,114,911 

Net Income 899,121 (350,949) (49,378) (2,000) (336,399) 160,395 
Actual Student Enrollment 314 - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 314 - 314 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



        

 

 

 
 

  

  

     
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

-

314 

Brighter Choice Charter School - Girls 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTALEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 4,996,184 - 275,122 4,000 - 5,275,306 
Total Expenses 4,097,063 350,949 324,500 6,000 336,399 5,114,911 

Net Income 899,121 (350,949) (49,378) (2,000) (336,399) 160,395 
Actual Student Enrollment 314 - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 314 -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

Albany 

Schenectady 

Troy 

South Colonie 
Lansignburgh 
North Colonie 
Cohoes 
Renssaelaer 
Watervilet 
Shendedehowa 
Rotterdam/Mohanasen 
Guilderland 
Menands 
Green Island 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 15,912 - 876 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 13,048 - 1,033 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

215 

44 

26 

2 
5 
1 
3 
5 
6 
1 
1 
1 
2 
2 

314 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

215 

44 

26 

2 
5 
1 
3 
5 
6 
1 
1 
1 
2 
2 

314 



 

        

  

 
 

  

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

State Child Nutrition 

Title I 
Title IIA 

CACFP 

After School Program 



         

    
       
  
  

  

  
 
 
  

            
 

  
        

 

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

(1) Principal, (1) Asst Principal 
(1) Dean, (1) Parent Coord, (1) Instructional Coach 

(.5) Finance Manager 
(.5) Ops Manager 
(1) Office Manager 

(16) Regular Teachers 

(3) SPED 

(1) Substitute 

(3) Teaching Assistants 

(1)Art, (1) Music, (1)PE/Dance Inst, (1) Science/Soc Stud, (2) RTI, (1) ESL, (1) 
Character Ed 

(2) Social Workers 

Stipends, After School, Summer School, Merit Pay, PTO Buyback 

(1) Nurse 



    

        

   

      

 
            

     

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Technology, Erate, Data Management, Other 

Uniforms, Special Events, Student Recognition, Backpack and Basketball Programs 

Student Recruitment, ELL Refugee/Outreach 

Bank Charges, Misc Fees, Dues & Memberships 

Bond Interest 
Facility R&M, Pest Cont, Evelator Maint, HVAC, Waste Rem, Fire Prev., Ground Rep 

Gas & Electric, Water & Sewage 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 
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President, Vice President, Secretary

Brighter Choice Charter Schools

X

NONENone

X

Martha Snyder

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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None

6/4/2019
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5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 
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None

Vice President

X

Trudy Hanmer

X

Brighter Choice Children’s School

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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6/6/2019
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5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

Business Address: _______________ 

E-mail Address: _______________ 

Home Telephone: _______________ 

Home Address: _______________ 
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Treasurer

None

X

Kevin Kearns

Bronx Academy of Promise

X

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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None

6/11/2019

 

          
        

        
          
              
           

        
        

       
      
        

 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

     
 

 

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

             

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the publi nformation 
provided below will b

Business Telep ________ 

Business Addre ________ 

E-mail Address: ________ 

Home Telephon ________ 

Home Address: ________ 
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X

Thomas MacGregor, spouse

secretary

We cost out a used mixer to determine a fair market price and did not require the school sell it to us.

X

The bakery I own with my husband purchased a mixer no longer being used by the schools. November, 2018

Zoe Nelson

Brighter Choice Charter Schools

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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None 

6/12/2019

 

          
        

        
          
              
           

        
        

       
      
        

 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

     
    

   

 

   
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

             

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

Business Addre ________________ 

E-mail Address: ________________ 

Home Telephon ________________ 

Home Address: ________________ 
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X

NONE

Nilsa Velilla

NONENONE

Brighter Choice Charter Schools

NONE

Parent Representative, Trustee

X

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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NONENONENONE NONENONE

6/20/2019

 

          
        

        
          
              
           

        
        

       
      
        

 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

     
    

   

 

  
 

  
 

      
 

   
 

      

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

             

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephon ___________________ 

Business Address: __________________ 

E-mail Address: __________________ 

Home Telephone: __________________ 

Home Address: __________________ 
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Trustee

Brighter Choice

NONE

X

X

Robert J. McLaughlin

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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6/8/2019
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5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

Business Address: ____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: ____________ 

Home Telephone: ____________ 

Home Address: ___________ 
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N/A

X

X

Nicole Maresca

Brighter Choice Charter Schools

None

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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None

6/4/2019

 

          
        

        
          
              
           

        
        

       
      
        

 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

     
    

   

 

   
 

   
 

       
 

    
 

       

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

             

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: ____________________________________________________ 

Business Address: _____________ 

E-mail Address: _____________ 

Home Telephone: _____________ 

Home Address: ____________ 
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________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member 

Name: __________________________________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 

interest/transacti 
on 

Steps taken to 
avoid a conflict 
of interest, 
(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 



 
 
 
 

  
        

 
       

          
       

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
   

 
           

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

  
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             

________ ________________________________________________________ 

_______________

_______________

_______________

_______________

_______________
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None

7/8/2019

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 
household holding 
an interest in the 
organization 
conducting 

business with the 
school(s) and the 

nature of the 
interest 

Steps taken 
to avoid 
conflict of 
interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Teleph

Business Addres

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone

Home Address: 

last revised 08/21/2018 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5D545444-1F7A-4AC2-BD27-37704448B1CA

Brighter Chioce Charter Schools 

Parent Representative 

X

X

None 

Shawn Wallace

  
  

 

  
 

 
 
 

      
   

 
  

 

           
  

 

 

             

   

           
     

  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
           

       
            

           
           
       

 

  
 

  
   

    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

          

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 

did not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 
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5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e . D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone ___________________ 

Business Address: ___________________ 

E-mail Address: ___________________ 

Home Telephone: ___________________ 

Home Address: ___________________ 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	

	

	
	

	
	 	

	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Martha 
Snyder

Trudy
Hanmer 

Ashleigh
Smith 

Zoe 
Nelson 

Nilsa 
Velilla 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Vice 
Chair 

Treasurer 

Secretary 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Finance 

Academic 
, 
Governan 
ce 

Finance 

Academic 
, Finance 

Academic 
, 
Governan 
ce 

Voting
Member 

Number 
of Terms 

Per By-
Laws 

Served 

(Y/N) 

Yes 3 

Yes 2 

Yes 1 

Yes 3 

Yes 4 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

11/1/201
8 

06/01/20
19 

01/01/20
19 

08/01/20
16 

08/01/20
18 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

11/1/202
1 

06/01/20
22 

01/01/20
22 

08/01/20
19 

08/01/20
21 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018-19 

11 

10 

8 

10 

5 or less 

Shawn 
Wallace Trustee/M Governan 05/01/20 06/01/20Yes 2ember ce 14 20 
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7 

Robert 
McLaughl

 

8 

Nicole 
Maresca 

9 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

1a. Are there more than 9 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

No 

Yes 
04/11/20
19 

05/06/20
19 

04/11/20 5 or less 22 

05/06/20 5 or less 22 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018-19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018-19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018-19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

8 

2 

0 

5 

11 

12 

2 / 3 



	 	

	Thank you. 

3 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 07/26/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018-June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018-19 

school year. 

BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER SCHOOL FOR GIRLS 

Are all monthly BOT meeting Yes 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

A. Provide if posted on the https://app2.boardontrack.com/public/ZMGdjp/home 

charter school's website a URL 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018-19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019-20. 

BRIGHTER CHOICE CHARTER SCHOOL FOR GIRLSSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018-19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019-20 

BCCSG’s admissions policy offers a
preference for economically disadvantaged
students. 
The school uses targeted language in
marketing and enrollment events to ensure
that families understand how school strives 
to fulfill needs of economically
disadvantaged students. This language
covers our free uniform program, community
eligibility status for breakfast and lunch,
program, backpack program, and additional
transportation within mile and a half radius
of school. 
The BCCSG Parent Coordinator oversees Econom school recruitment strategies to ensure theically high enrollment of economicallyDisadva disadvantaged students. These strategiesntaged include: holding open house recruitment
events, building and establishing a presence
at community events, maintaining a
relationship with local homeless shelters,
advertising in local publications that focus on
enrollment, and direct mail campaigns.
In 2017-18, the school implemented a
branding strategy with content and
experiential marketing. For the 2018-2019 

In 2018-19, our percentage of ED students
was 89% and our district was 70%. Going
forward, we will: 
· Continue to use targeted language in
marketing and enrollment events to ensure
that families understand how school strives 
to fulfill needs of economically
disadvantaged students including: free
uniform shoes, community eligibility status
for breakfast and lunch, addition of supper
program, backpack program, additional
transportation within mile and a half radius
of school. 
· Mail campaigns
· Bus and Bus Shelter Advertisement 
· Commercial 

· Continue to employ a parent coordinator
who focuses on serving parents and any
special family needs. The Parent coordinator
will also oversee school identified 
recruitment strategies to ensure high
enrollment of economically disadvantaged
students. These include; 
· Duplicating our top performing strategies
· Holding open house recruitment events
· Building and establishing a presence in
community events
· Know and approach local homeless shelters 

1 / 6 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

school’s year, BCCS partnered with
CollectiveEfforts Marketing. This marketing
group supported Brighter Choice with
initiatives for content and experiential
marketing. 

BCCSG’s admissions policy offers a
preference for English language learners.
The school uses targeted language in
marketing and enrollment events to ensure
that families understand how school strives 
to fulfill needs of ELL students. Our 
marketing images continue to be diversified
to represent scholars from many cultures.
Our application is available in Spanish. We
also added a Google translation feature to
our website. 
Our recruitment activities target preschools
in communities with high numbers of ELL
students. We have also cultivated a 
relationship with US Committee for Refugees

English and Immigrants (USCRI
Langua http://refugees.org/field-office/albany/) to
ge support current families and inform others
Learner about school choice. 
s/Multili We have supported our initiative to recruit
ngual more refugees and immigrants by budgeting
Learner for a liaison who will focus on establishing
s relationships throughout Capital Region and

informing families about school.
In addition, we have focused on will aligned
content on our social media page to our
overall marketing goal of enrolling increase
numbers of English Language Learners.
We have Spanish translators available for
tours. We also work with Pashto and Bengali
translators who are available based on 
incoming families need. During the school
year we have used these translators to
service our current families. We have 
advertising materials in English, Spanish,
and Arabic. We also are having our
application translated to Arabic. 

· Continuing with the partnership with APD’s
Handle with Care program and having two
school counselors to provide increased group
and individual counseling.
· Continued implementation of targeted
Social-Emotional programs by classroom
teachers and a Character Education Teacher 

In 2018-19, our percentage of ELLs was 8%
and our district was 12%. Going forward, we
will: 

· Continued efforts with the following;
· Targeted language in marketing and
enrollment events to ensure that families 
understand how school strives to fulfill needs 
of ELL students 
· Marketing images continue to be diversified
to represent scholars from many cultures.
· Partnerships will be cultivated with a variety
of local businesses and marketing materials
posted.
· Ensure enrollment activities target
preschools in communities with high
numbers of ELL students. 
· Ensured school admission policy revised to
establish a weighing for ELL students.
· Employed a 1.0 FTE ELL teacher.
· Cultivate a relationship with US Committee
for Refugees and Immigrants (USCRI
http://refugees.org/field-office/albany/) to
support current families and inform others
about school choice. 
· Managing and continuing to re-strategize
the Brighter Choice social media presence.
· Ensuring our programs have appropriately
dedicated and trained/certified staff.
· Ensuring Spanish translators are available
during family events and dismissal.
· Continuing our relationships with a Bengali
translator for various family events.
· Translating our application into Spanish,
Arabic and Bengali.
· Cultivating relationships with current ELL
families 

In 2018-19, our percentage of SWD was 4%
and our district was 13%. Going forward, we
plan to continue implementing the strategies
currently in place, with the addition of: Re-
launching our school’s website to highlight
services we provide to meet the needs of all 

2 / 6 
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BCCSG’s admissions policy offers a
preference for students with disabilities.
BCCSG uses targeted language in marketing
and enrollment events to ensure that 
families understand how school strives to 
fulfill needs of SWD students. Our open
houses include time for prospective parents
to connect with teachers and school leaders 
and discuss student needs, and begin toStudent build relationships. We ensure that our SPEDs with Coordinator is present during this time. WeDisabilit post Open House advertisements on ouries social media that market our school as 
accommodating ELLs and students with IEPs.
We are in the process of creating a referral
program where employees and parents will
be motivated to refer families/community
members to BCCS to service the needs to 
their student with an IEP. Further, in 2018-19, 
BCCSG added one ICT kindergarten
classroom. 

students, including students from special
populations and including more videos on
social media pages that intentionally
highlight us meeting the needs of our special
population.
· School continues to be intentional about 
seeking out prospective staff members who
are dual certified to serve SWD. 
· School will continue to employ parent
coordinator position focused on serving
parents and any special family needs.
· School will cultivate a relationship with the
organization Spotted Zebra.
· School will continue to employ a certified
Special Education Coordinator responsible for
overseeing programs that provide
educational assistance to IEP scholars as well 
and providing special education services to
IEP scholars. 
· School will keep revised open house that
includes a time for prospective parents to
connect with teachers and school leaders to 
discuss student needs, and begin to build
relationships; school will ensure that the
SPED Coordinator is present to help and field
questions.
· School will initiate grass root marketing and
a commercial emphasizing our special
education programming.
· Brighter Choice continues to cultivate a
relationship with Saint Rose in order to host
student teachers who are enrolled in Special
Education courses. 
· SPED coordinator will continue to refine the 
Student Support Team process which entails
meeting regularly concerning at-risk students
for initial and follow-up meetings. This allows
our staff to be responsive to the needs of our
students and identify students who may
need further evaluation or identification. 
· Brighter Choice continues to be flexible to
meet the needs of all students. This year
BCCS will include a co-teaching first grade
classroom to serve the needs of three 
students with disabilities. 
· BCCS will continue to make internal 
schedule changes to specific homeroom
schedules as needed in order to meet 
student needs. We continue to explore
additional programming options in order to
attract and retain Students with Disabilities. 
· Brighter Choice will continue with the two
counselor model. 
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· Continue cultivating a relationship with
district CSE members informing them of our
programming
· School will hire an additional Special
Education teacher 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018-19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019-20 

To retain ED students BCCSG offers the 
following supports:
We employ a Parent Coordinator to focus on
serving parents and any special family
needs. 
BCCSG provides additional transportation
within mile and a half radius of school. 
We offer an incentivized attendance program
for scholars with low attendance. 
We offer free breakfast, lunch, and supper
for all students. Econom We offer free uniforms. ically Our afterschool program is free.Disadva We have an extended day and school year.ntaged We offer social and emotional health 
programs to support children living with
effects of poverty, including a family therapy
clinic in partnership with Parsons, and
participation in the Albany Police
Department’s Handle with Care program,
which supports student struggling with
trauma outside of the classroom. 
We hired an additional school counselor in 
2018-19 to allow for increased group and
individual counseling. 

BCCSG offers the following supports for ELLs:
We employ a full time ESL teacher. In
addition, our support staff includes two
School Counselors, two Student Success 
Coordinators, three RtI teachers, a SPED 
Coordinator, and two SPED-certified 
teachers. 
In addition, our Parent Coordinator focuses 
on serving parents and any special family
needs. 
We established an ELL community liaison
position to support a connection betweenEnglish
BCCSG and prospective families.Langua 
We recruit prospective staff members whoge
are bilingual and can support families of ELLLearner 
students. s/Multili
We provided translation support in Spanish ngual 

Our retention rate for ED students was 77% 
between 2017-18 and 2018-19. Going
forward, we will: 

· Continue to focus and support families who
are experiencing economic hardship.
· Employing a second counselor to provide
additional group and individual counseling.
· Utilizing a counselor to support families with
counseling appointments or any follow up
appointments.
· Continue to extend supper program to
serve scholars participating in backpack
program and afterschool programs. Include
afterschool tutoring during the school year.
· Continue to provide transportation for
students less than 1.5 mile radius and 
Schenectady transportation.
· Continue to implement an incentivized
attendance program for scholars with low
attendance. 

Our retention rate for ELLs was 90% between 
2017-18 and 2018-19. Going forward, we
will: 
· Continue with all current efforts and build 
capacity with current staff to service needs
of ELL students through professional 
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Learner and Arabic at orientations, enrollment 
s events, and at other occasions as needed. 

We have a relationship with US Committee
for Refugees and Immigrants (USCRI
http://refugees.org/field-office/albany/) to
support current families by connecting
networks of support.
We continue to build capacity with current
staff to service needs of ELL students 
through professional development
opportunities with CASDA and University of
Albany and opportunities for collaboration
with the ELL teacher at BCCS-B. 

BCCSG offers the following supports for
students with disabilities: 
We employ a certified Special Education
Coordinator who responsible for overseeing
programs that provide educational
assistance to IEP scholars as well and 
providing special education services to IEP
scholars.Our SPED coordinator re-initiated 
the Student Support Team which meets
regularly concerning at-risk students for
initial and follow-up meetings. This allows
our staff to be responsive to the needs of our
students and identify students who may
need further evaluation or identification. In 
addition, our student support staff includes
two School Counselors, two Student Success 
Coordinators, three RtI teachers, and two 
SPED-certified teachers. In addition, our 

Student Parent Coordinator focuses on serving
s with parents and any special family needs.
Disabilit We are intentional about recruiting
ies prospective staff members who are certified

to serve SWD. Brighter Choice Girls has also
cultivated a relationship with Saint Rose in
order to host student teachers who are 
enrolled in Special Education courses.
Brighter Choice Girls continues to be flexible
to meet the needs of all students. This year
BCCS-G added a co-teaching Kindergarten
classroom to serve the needs of three 
students with disabilities. We make internal 
schedule changes to specific homeroom
schedules as needed in order to meet 
student needs. We continue to explore
additional programming options in order to
attract and retain Students with Disabilities. 
In 2017-18, we introduced a family mental
health clinic to serve the school community
and also cultivated a relationship with 
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development opportunities with CASDA and
opportunities for collaboration with the ELL
teacher at BCCS-B. 

Our retention rate for SWD was 80% between 
2017-18 and 2018-19. Going forward, we
will: 
· Continue with efforts 
· BCCS will continue to make internal 
schedule changes to specific homeroom
schedules as needed to retain Students with 
Disabilities. 

http://refugees.org/field-office/albany/


	 	

	 	 	 	 	Families Together in New York State. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
– 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18 – 6/30/19 

25 9 7 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

2 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
– 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
– 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 - 6/30/19 6/3019 

0 23 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
- 6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 2 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 

2 / 2 
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Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 08/01/2019 • Last updated: 08/28/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6-30-19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6-30-19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6-30-19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6-30-19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6-30-19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6-30-19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

9 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

16 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

9 

7 

0 

0 

1 

1 
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BCCS-G 2018-2019 
Principal 

Parent 
Coordinator 

Office 
Manager 

School 
Counselor 

(x2) 

Dean of 
Students 

Character 
Education 
Teacher 

Assistant 
Principal 

Nurse (x1) 

Instructional 
Coach (x1) 

Second Grade 
(x3) 

First Grade 
(x3) 

K Teacher 
(x3) 

RTI (x2)Fifth Grade 
(x2) 

Fourth Grade 
(x2) 

Third Grade 
(x3) 

BC Schools Board of Trustees 

Finance 
Manager 

(0.50) 

Operations 
Manager 

(0.50) 

ESL Teacher 
(x1) 

Specials 
Teachers (x3) 

Building Sub 
(x1) 

Teaching 
Assistants (x3) 

Special 
Education 

(x3) 

Science/S.S. 
(x1) 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

               
      

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

BCCS-G 2018-2019 

Second Grade (x2) 

Park w/ TA 

Hildebrand w/ TA 

Third Grade 
(x3) Farley, 
Palmatier, 
Ferguson 

Fourth Grade 
(x2) Balling, 

Forbes 

3-5    Science/ SS Upper school and Math interventionist 



 
   

  
  

  

 
       

       

       
       
       
       

 

 
 
 

 

       

       

       
       
       
       

 

    
   

  

  
  

      

 
       
       
       
       

       

       
 

  
       
       

       

       

       
       

 

 
    

    
   

 
   

   
 
  
 

    
 

 
       
       
       
       

       

       
 

  
       
       

       

       

       

       
 

 
    

     

 
 

    
  
 

  

 
       
       

       

       

       

       
 

  
       
       
       
       
       
       

 

  
  

 
 

  

   
    

  
 
 
 
  

 
       

       

       

       

       

       
 

  
       
       

       

       

       

       
 

  
    
    

    
  
   
   
  
   

 
       
       

       

       

       

       
 

  
       
       

       

       

       
        

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

  

Brighter Choice 2019-20 School Calendar 

15-16 New Staff Reports half-days 
19 All staff returns PD 
26-27 Kindergarten Camp 

S 

4 
11 
18 
25 

August 2019 
M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 

5 6 7 8 9 10 
12 13 14 15 16 17 
19 20 21 22 23 24 
26 27 28 29 30 31 

TBD Emergency EARLY RELEASE 
4 No School- Professional Devlopment 
14 No School – Columbus Day 

S 

6 
13 

20 

27 

OCTOBER 2019 
M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 5 
7 8 9 10 11 12 

14 15 16 17 18 19 

21 22 23 24 25 26 

28 29 30 31 

2 Start of Trimester 2 
13 Half Day (11:30) Academic 
Conferences 
20 No School- Professional 
Development 
23-31 No School – Winter Break 

S 
1 
8 

15 

22 

29 

DECEMBER 2019 
M T W Th F S 
2 3 4 5 6 7 
9 10 11 12 13 14 

16 17 18 19 20 21 

23 24 25 26 27 28 

30 31 

17-21 No School – February Break 
24 No School- Professional 
Development 

S 

2 

9 

16 

23 

FEBRUARY 2020 
M T W Th F S 

1 

3 4 5 6 7 8 

10 11 12 13 14 15 

17 18 19 20 21 22 

24 25 26 27 28 29 

9 No School- Professional Development 
10-17 No School – Spring Break 
22-23 NYS Math Testing (3-5) 

S 

5 

12 

19 

26 

APRIL 2020 
M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 

6 7 8 9 10 11 

13 14 15 16 17 18 

20 21 22 23 24 25 

27 28 29 30 

1 NYS Written Science Test (Grade 4) 
17 EOY Field Trip 
19 5th Graduation 
19 End of Trimester 3 
22 K Graduation 
26 Last Day of School; Half Day 

S 
31 

7 

14 

21 

28 

JUNE 2020 
M T W Th F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 

8 9 10 11 12 13 

15 16 17 18 19 20 

22 23 24 25 26 27 

29 30 

S 

1 

8 
15 
22 
29 

SEPTEMBER 2019 

M T W Th F 

2 3 4 5 6 

9 10 11 12 13 
16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 

S 

7 

14 
21 
28 

2 No School – Labor Day 
3 First Day of School; Beginning of 
Trimester 1 

S 

3 

10 

17 
24 

NOVEMBER 2019 
M T W Th F 

1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

S 
2 

9 

16 

23 
30 

11 No School – Veteran’s Day 
27-29 No School – Thanksgiving Break 
29 End of Trimester 1 

S 

5 

12 

19 

26 

JANUARY 2020 
M T W Th F 

1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 

20 21 22 23 24 

27 28 29 30 31 

S 
4 

11 

18 

25 

1 No School – Winter Break 
20 No School – MLK Day 

S 
1 
8 

15 
22 
29 

MARCH 2020 
M T W Th F 
2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 31 

S 
7 

14 
21 
28 

13 End of Trimester 2 
16 Start of Trimester 3 
20 Half Day (11:30) Academic 
Conferences 
25-26 NYS ELA Testing (3-5) 

S 

3 

10 

17 

24 

MAY 2020 
M T W Th F 

1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

S 
2 

9 

16 

23 

30 

18-29 Science Performance 
25 No School – Memorial Day 
26 No School – Teacher Work Day 

S 

5 

12 

19 
26 

JULY 2020 
M T W Th F 

1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 

20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

S 
4 

11 

18 

25 

First & Last Day 

Half Day 

Professional Development 

Special Event 

No School 

Scholar Days: 183 
Teacher Days: 197 
New Teacher Days: 199 

Updated 2019_6_6 
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